MARDEN PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Parish Council held on Monday 10 February 2020 at 19.30 at Marden Community Centre

A one minute silence was held at the start of the meeting in memory of Michael Parkes, retired Vice Chair and Councillor.

- **Present:** Cllrs David Bennett (Chair), Kate Ryan, Richard Paske, Mike Blake, Patrick Meredith and Rod Lees.
- **In Attendance**: Ward Cllr Kema Guthrie; Parish Clerk Alison Sutton; Tree Warden Andrew Kier; and 3 members of the public.
- 1. Apologies for absence Cllrs Emma Garlick and Paula Barrett.
- 2. Declarations of interest and written applications for dispensation Cllr Paske DECLARED an interest in item 7.1 and left the meeting during the item.
- 3. Update on vacancy process and consider co-option NOTED: election not requested, can co-opt. Clerk INSTRUCTED to put item in News & Views asking anyone interested to attend March meeting and speak for 2 minutes.

4. Public Forum –

- 4.1. West Mercia Police Contact details in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED.
- 4.2. Ward Councillor Report NOTED: draft Council Tax going to full council meeting 14.2.20, 3.9% increase, 80% of budget for care of looked-after children, draft budget online; review of options for transport projects, funding withdrawn by Marches Enterprise Partnership; highways various flooded areas reported to Land Drainage team, by Small Ashes, by Moreton turn, sewage on road by Laystone bridge, please report issues by phone on 01432 261800 or online at https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/info/200196/roads/190/report_problems_on_the_road; Laystone Bridge repair due in spring when able to put scaffolding into river; Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority. 2 new machines, smaller and more suitable for rural areas.
- 4.3. Local Residents Various uploading document issues, Clerk to rectify; Clerk's expenses not in Publication Scheme; PA system at item 8.6 NOTED as suggestion not decision; Clerk INSTRUCTED to add email addresses to Cllrs' details on website. New tenant re 7.1, working to renovate site so able to re-open, aim to stay for 3-5 yrs.
- 5. Minutes of the last meetings 13 and 27 January 2020 ADOPTED and SIGNED.
- 6. Financial Procedures The balance of the current account of £60,055.34 as at 3 February 2020 was NOTED. Balance includes: committed reserves of donations for Community Facilities (CF) of £5,908.05; committed reserves of £27,000 held for loan repayments/CF work. Actual payments, receipts and variance against budget REVIEWED and AGREED as in appendix attached when minutes adopted:
 - 6.1. Marden Chapel, Room hire for CF mtg, £15, C/N 1517.
 - 6.2. Supplymeprint.com Ltd, February News & Views print, £203, C/N 1518.
 - 6.3. Roundabout Stationery, Stationery and ink for Clerk's use and FR posters, £30.57 (inc. £5.09 VAT), C/N 1519.
 - 6.4. Income from NatWest Bank, Compensation and refund for Clerk's salary and mileage, £200.

7. Planning Applications –

7.1. P194399/F, Volunteer Inn, Marden, HR1 3ET – Refurbishment and re-ordering of the existing pub with the removal of the existing WC block to the South Elevation – RESOLVED to support, in conformity with NDP policy M7.

- 7.2. NOTED P192806/F, Oakridge, Marden, HR1 3EZ Proposed new access and change of use of paddock from agriculture to residential Approved with conditions.
- 7.3. NOTED P192298/F, Paradise Meadows, Marden Proposed bungalow and garage Refused.
- 7.4. NOTED P174269/F, Brook Farm, Marden, HR1 3ET Proposed modification to existing agricultural building to accommodate a biomass boiler, including flue Appeal against refusal of planning permission Appeal upheld, permission granted. Costs application refused.

8. Parish Reports and Issues -

- 8.1. Lengthsman Scheme, general maintenance and grass cutting consider items for Lengthsman or other Contractors; consider response from Locality Steward re flooding and pothole repairs Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: Flooding at C1120 near Old School House and C1125 at Small Ashes passed to Land Drainage team; Balfour Beatty responsible for cutting grips throughout parish; Steward unable to supply list of potholes reported for repair; further email sent to contact point requesting weekly data. Clerk INSTRUCTED to email contact Knowledge Centre Manager, request attend March meeting with response to land drainage issues. Ward Cllr follow up re requested data.
- 8.2. Footpath Officer Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: Waiting for response from landowner re gates on MR24 and MR45; locked gate on MR21 passed to Locality Steward; trying to find owners for fields on MR32 and MR18A, Balfour Beatty unable to provide details due to GDPR but need to know issue; meeting S&A re way marking and ploughing issues on MR22 and MR5.
- 8.3. Community Facilities Group – receive report and consider submitting planning application. Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED and purchase of banners: RESOLVED to overprint for Race Night banner x1; purchase new banners x2 for fete & Clerk INSTRUCTED to confirm church will fund one. Presentation made on work of Community Facilities Group (CFG) and recommendations from Group. Main points NOTED: summary of meeting with Marden Village Trust (MVT); issues of leases on current centre summarised, PC/CFG not in position to give up leases as constitutional issue for MVT or successor CIO and risk to Academy considered by PC as not worth taking as Academy major parish asset; summary of CFG discussions; Architype study, options considered; funding analysis; CFG proposals – 1. Approval of addition of easterly extension to base build (option 2b) providing total internal footprint of 324 m² at estimated cost of £406k base + £50k extension + £60k Eco, to be confirmed, 2. Approval of submission of planning application before 29 March deadline for NHF Reserved Matters, 3. Approval to instigate partial RIBA 3 at cost of £7,850 to include submission of planning application, finalisation of business plan requirements and development and implementation of design and procurement strategy, 4. Approval of funding proposal that would require PWL of up to £500k over 30 years which, based on £500K and current tax base, would require further precept increase of 40p/week for Band D, 5. Approval of CFG plan for information event as part of Community Summer Fete followed by detailed letter to each household asking to endorse precept increase to cover loan required. RESOLVED to adopt recommendations 1-5 from CFG. Clerk INSTRUCTED to put full presentation on website and send to Cllrs and CFG members.
- 8.4. Volunteer maintenance for notice boards Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: 6 boards need work varnishing of frame, some new pinboard, new post x1, vegetation cutting back. Clerk INSTRUCTED to arrange meeting with ClIrs Lees and Meredith to consider work required.
- 8.5. Tree Warden Issues about mistletoe and elm trees NOTED: elms get to certain age and then likely to come down as not yet have new resistance, landowners' responsibility to assess trees and action if required; mistletoe encouraged in county, not a problem on larger trees but can dry out and damage smaller tree, landowners' responsibility to assess trees and action if required.
- 8.6. Request from WI for mobile PA unit Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: WI request for small system just for WI; suggestion for bigger multi-purpose unit for indoor and outdoor events, owned by PC for use by all parish groups, cost approx. £215. Clerk INSTRUCTED to: contact Hereford Music Shop for advice on suitable unit; add to next agenda.
- 8.7. Feedback re Small Ashes Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: Complaint under investigation by Community Protection team. Clerk INSTRUCTED to follow up and add to next agenda.
- 8.8 Tree pruning round flagpoles No report. Clerk INSTRUCTED to add to next agenda.

- 8.9. Update on BT box Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: Now set up as Public Rights of Way Information Point.
- 8.10. Request from Courtyard Theatre for donation Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: Various levels of sponsorship requested for capital development at theatre. RESOLVED to give donation of £50 as sponsorship.
- 8.11. Referral of Extinguishment Order for MR45A (part) to Secretary of State for confirmation NOTED.
- 8.12. Request for support from Bartestree with Lugwardine PC Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: Bartestree with Lugwardine (BWL) PC submitted 2 complaints, 1. about advice given by Planning Officer to Planning Committee which PC considers misleading and 2. non-existent efforts to review Core Strategy; asking for support from other parishes; BWL NDP different from Marden NDP as contains policy supporting development of infill and windfall sites outside settlement boundaries. RESOLVED that whilst have sympathy, Marden NDP and position of NDP in relation to applications different, so unable to support request but interested in update on outcome.

As 21.30, RESOLVED to finish agenda items.

- **9.** Paying HALC subscription for 2020-21 RESOLVED to pay this year. Clerk INSTRUCTED to inform HALC that concerned at cost and will review benefit for future renewals.
- **10. Deferment of re-enrolment of Clerk in pensions scheme –** Report in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: 3-yr automatic re-enrolment date deferred for 3 months following advice from Pensions Regulator, to allow next salary to be under threshold requiring automatic enrolment, as Clerk does not wish to be entered in pension scheme.
- 11. Correspondence Correspondence in Clerk's Information Sheet NOTED: Great British Spring Clean 20.3.20-13.4.20, as Litter Pick and freighter on 25 April, Clerk INSTRUCTED to add item to News & Views asking interested parishioners to contact Vice Chair if able to help with extra litter pick during Spring Clean weeks.

12. Matters for next agenda or for Clerk's action under delegated authority

Next agenda:

- Reserves Strategy for 2020-2021
- NDP Settlement Hierarchy document
- As above.

Clerk's action:

- Use Urgent Planning Matters Policy for P200118/PA7
- As above.

13. Date of next meeting – Monday 9 March 2020 at 19.30

This meeting was declared closed at 21.48.

SIGNED:

Marden Chair

DATE: